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This action stems from the declision of defendant ard of
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Trustees of the Operating Engineers Health & Welfare Trust Hund

United States District Court
For the Northem District of California
e
By

—
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("the Board") to deny claims for payment for services providgd to

f
\te]

Erica Reed and Sandra Bunch by plaintiff Teen Help, Inc dba

N
— O

Brightway Adolescent Hospital (“Brightway”). Plaintiffs seajo
me

recovery of banefits pursuant to the Employee Retirement In

(3]
N

Security Act (“ERISA"), 28 USC § 1132(a) (1) (B) and statutory

N
w

penalties pursuant to 29 USC § 1132(c) (1) for defendants' falilure

N
-

to produce documents in violation of 29 USC § 1024 (b) (4) and 28 USC

N
W

§ 1133(2). Before the court are the parties! cross-motions ffor

[\
(o

summary Jjudgment.
Juliana Morrill was a benaeficiary of the Operating
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Engineers Health & Welfare Trust Fund. See Def's Mem at 2. |Her
daughter, Erica Reed, received treatment at Brightway for

adjustment reaction with disturbance of mocd and conduct, mixed

psychoactive substance abuse, parent-child conflict, dysthynia
(mental depression, despondency), amphetamine abuse and cannabis
abuse. Reed was admitted to Brightway on Octaber 31, 1995, |and
treated there through November 20, 1995. See Compl 11~12. [Timothy

Bunch was also a beneficiary under the Fund. &ee Dsf's Mem pat 2,
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His daughter, Sandra Bunch, received treatment at Brightway |for

—
[=]

dysthymic disorder, major depression, single episode, moderate,

[y
—

parent-child relational problem, cannabis abuse and polysubsftance

abuse. Bunch was admitted to Brightway January 9, 1995, and

ot
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treated there through January 30, 19935.

The Board contracted with Health Care Evaluation, [nc

[
h

("HCE") and Cost Care to perform reviews of the medical nacegsity of

p—y
o)

Bunch's hospitalization. Cost Care concluded that Bunch's

—t
~

hospitalization was not medically necessary; HCE concluded that

United States District Court
For the Nosthem District of California
oy
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only three days of the hospitalization were medically necesspry.

See Declaration of Susan J. Olson (‘Olson Decl”) 9417, 19, Exhs E,

—
O

H. Accordingly, the Board denied Bunch's claim for hospitalfization

&
<

between January 13, 1995, and January 30, 1995. Cost Care

N
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conducted the review of Reed's claim and concluded that the

NN
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hospitalization was not medically necessary. See id €17, Exh F.

Accordingly, the Board denied the entirety of Reed's clain.
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Juliana Morrill and Timothy Bunch contracted with blaims

N
W

Management, Ync (“CMI") to pursue their claims with the Boarq. By

[
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letters dated March 25, 1997, and April 25, 1997, CMI indicated to
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the Board that it was Morrill's authorized representative arnd

requested the medical reviewer's rationale for determining Yhat

Frica Reed's hospitalization at Brightway was not medically

necessary and the utilization review criteria used by the Plan for

making determinations of medical necessity. See Olson Dacl,

CMI was never provided with the documents it requested and

23, 1997, the Board denied Reed's appeal. See Olson Decl,

The Board contends that Timothy Bunch never pursue

Exh XK.
May
xh J.

an

appeal of the denial of his claim as required by the terms of the

plan. Accordingly, the Board contends that Bunch's claim mu

denied for failure to exhaust administrative remedies, Qitinf
The sumnary

d, 618 F2d 559 (9th cir 1980). plan

description provides that a peneficiary whose claim has been

or his duly authorized representative must subnit a petition

appeal in writing with 60 days after the petitioner
of the denial. See Olson Decl §15, Exh C at 57-58.
not indicate the date that the notice of denlal was

or CMI, nor does that notice appear in the record.

CMI to the Board dated September 23, 1996, does appear in th+

record. See Olson Decl, Exh D,

notice of denial was dated July 24, 1896.

the notice of denial was not sent to CMI and criticizing the

of benefits, the September 23 letter states;

We ask that the Board review this matter in its ent
Tf denial is maintained we ask that you forward to
office a copy of the clinical criteria which was u
also provide for us Dr. Kellars' rationa
not certifying the continued confinement past Janu

[HCE] and

1995 as medically necessary.

That letter indicates that 9

After complaining

received
Pafend
sent to

A letter

t be
Amato

denied
for
notice
nts do
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from

the

that
denlal
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1d. The letter also indicates that a written authorization for
CMI to act as Timothy Bunch's representative was sent to thg Board.
Defendants do not explain why they believe that this letter |fails
to meet the requirements for a petition for appeal as set fdrth in
the summary plan description. It appears timely and makes
sufficiently clear the petitioner's desire to appeal his denjial of
penefits. In light of this letter and the total absence of gny
aitempt by defendants to indicate why it was not adeguate asj a
petition for appeal, the court finds that Bunch did petition| the
Board for review and that the Boardt!s fallure to conduct such a
review violated Bunch's right to a full and fair review of al denial
of his claim. See 29 USC § 1133(2).
CMT also wrote latters to the Board on June 13, 19p6, and
July 12, 1996. See id, Exh L. Aleng with the September 23 lLetter,
these letters requested the medical revieswer's rationale for
determining that Sandra Bunch's hospitalization at Brightway
between January 13, 1995, and January 31, 1995, was not medipally
necessary, the utilization review criteria used by the Boardj for
making determinations of medical necessity and the medical
reviewer's credentlals. The plan never provided these docu#ents
to CMI.
ERISA provides that “[t)he administrator shall, updn
written request of any participant or beneficiary, furnish ajcopy
of the latest updated summary plan description,[] and the latest
annual report, any terminal report, the bargaining agreement trust
agreement, contract, or othér instruments under which the plkn is

established or operated." 29 USC § 1024(b)(4). A request fdr

4
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documents pursuant to section 1024 (b) (4) must “give[] the
administrater clear notice of what information the beneficijry
desires.” Andersen v Flexel, Ingc, 47 F3d4 243, 248 (7th Cir 1995).
Tf the reqguest is from a third party, the thira
party must provide written authorization from the beneficiaxy or
participant to request the documents. See id at 249.
The first two requirements are clearly satisfied Here.
Defendants concede that CMI was authorized to act on behalf |of
Morrill and Bunch. BSee Def's Mem in Support of 8T at 6. Irndeed,

as noted above, the letters by which CMI made the requests flor

information indicate that written authorizations executed b

Morrill and Bunch were provided to the Plan. Nor are the latters

within the meaning of seaction 1024 (b) (4).

The Ninth Circuit addressed the meaning of that phirase in

Hughes court held that ‘other instruments under which the plan is
established or operated,” did not include a list of the nameg and

addresses of other plan participants because the scope of thaht

specifically listed in section 1024(b). "The relevant doouménts
are those documents that provide individual participants with
information about the plan and benefits." 1d at 690. The sTcond
Circuit reached a similar conclusion in Board of Trustees oflthe

5
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QHAL1IH_Hgg9:int=d_Bsnﬁign_EMMLALMEunﬁﬁﬁin, 107 F3d 139 (24 Cir

1997). Interpreting the same phrase according to its plain

meaning, the Weinstein court concluded that the word “instr

refers to "formal legal documents that govern or confine a

ee
1996) (concluding that “ other instruments under which the plan is

documents under which a plan is set up or ranaged.") The
court also mined the legislative history of saction 1024 (b)
articulated Congress' goals in enacting that section as “pro iding
plan participants with more significant information about ( the
plans, (2) their rights and benefits, (3) how those rights uld be
lost, and (4) transactions by plan fiduciaries * * % " in,
107 F3d at 144,

The court is also guided by the opinion of the Sec etary
of Labor, who has filed a brief as amicus curiae in this actlion and
written an advisory opinion letter addreasing this issue.

The Secretary of the Department of Labor is chargef with

enforcing ERISA and its fiduciary duties, and she has the

authority to render authoritative interpretations pf the

Act. See 29 USC § 1132(a)(2). Unless Congress, ih

enacting ERISA, demonstrated clearly its intent wigh

regard to the questions before us, we must defer tp the

Secretary's official interpretations of ERISA if they are
reasonable.

Herman v Nationsbank Trust Comwpany, 126 F3d 1354, 1363 (1llthjcCir
1897); see also Mmmwmm
Corporation, 3 F3d 986, 993 (7th cir 1992) (deferring to Secfetary

6
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1| of Labor's interpretation of ERISA as contained in amicus cyriae
21 brief filed with the court). Department of Labor Advisory {pinion
3| Letter 96-14a indicates that
4 it is the view of the Department of Labor that, fqr
purposes of [section 1024(b)(2) and (4)], any dooyment or
5 instrument that specifies procedures, formulas,
methodologies, or schedules to be applisd in detexmining
6 or calculating a participant's or beneficiary's bdnefit
entitlement under an employee benefit plan would
7 constitute an instrument under which the plan is
established or operated, regardless of whether suig
8 information is contained in a document designated las the
0 *plan document.”
0 In her amicus curiae brief, the Secretary argues that the
1
utilization review criteria documents requested by CMI “by
1: 11 . ,
2 definition are used to determine the benefits a [sic] participants
. 12
% § ) are entitled to and under what circumstances the benefits ar
. 3 , _ A . :
«E ‘é 4 provided. The criteria are the types of "rules, practices ahd
L l
% a ~ | procedures' which define how the plan is operated.” Brief of the
15
§ g Secretary of the United States Department of Labor as Amicus|Curiae
ZE 16
‘g g . (‘DOL Brief") at 9,
g The court finds the Secretary's interpretation of fhe
18
o statute to be reasonable. The utilization review criteria are
1
arguably an instrument as the Second and Fourth circuits undgrstand
20 :
5 the term because they govern how the plan operates and are net
1
*routine documents” such as the actuarial valuation reports
22
3 addressed in Weinstein or the list of participants’ addresse?
2
24 sought by the plaintiffs in Hughes. Requiring the Plan to disclose
the utilization review criteria is also consistent with the l’inth
25
6 Circuit's interpretation in Hughes because the criteria "proviide
2
) individual participants with information about the plan and
7 .
28 4
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benefits.” Hughes,72 Fid at 690, The Secretary's interpretLtion
is also consistent with Congress' ocbjective that “the indiviBual
participant know[] exactly where he stands with respect to the

plan--what benefits he may be entitled to * * * . 8 Rep No| 127,

93rd Cong, 2nd Sess 28 (1973), reprinted in 1974 USCCAN 483§, 4863;
see also Weinstein, 107 F3d at 144 (articulating Congress' rpose
in passing section 1024(b)(4)). Accordingly, the court fin that

the utilization review criteria are “other instruments under|which

the plan is established or operated,” and are required to be
disclosed by the plan administrator.

The court cannot conclude, however,. that either thie
medical reviewer's credentials or the medical reviewer's ratjionale
for denying coverage are "other instruments under which the plan isa
established or operated" that must be disclosed pursuant to pection
1024 (b) (4) . These documents are routine documents that do npt
affect a beneficiary's rights under the plan, do not govern how the
plan operates and are not similar in nature to any of the
instruments specifically referred to in section 1024 (b) (4).

Plaintiffs argue, however, that they are entitled fo

these latter documents pursuant to 29 USC § 1133, which provides

that “[i]ln accordance with regulations of the Secrstary, evqry
employee benefit plan shall-- * * * afford a reasonable oppo tunity
to any participant whose claim for benefits has been denied for a
full and fair review by the appropriate named fiduciary of t&e
decision denying the claim.” Acting pursuant to this provisipn,
the Secretary of Labor promulgated regulations defining what

constitutes a “full and fair review."” These regulations provide

8
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that the plan's review procedure must allow “a claimant or lis duly

2l authorized representative [to] # * * [rleview pertinent docments.”
3|l 20 cFrR § 2860.503-1 (g)(ii); see also Ellis v Metxopolitan life
4| Insurance Company, 126 F3d 228, 237 (4th Cir 1997) ("The
5| opportunity to review the pertinent documents is critical t¢ a full
6l and fair review, for by that mechanism the claimant has accgss to
71 the evidence upon which the decision-maker relied in denying the
8l ca1aim and thus the opportunity to challenge its accuracy ang
9fl reliability.”)
10 The question is whether the medical reviewer's raflicnale
'E 11|l for denying coverage and the medical reviewer's credentials |are
S - 12| “pertinent documents.” The court concludes that they are. A
:E é 13| c1aimant cannot reasonably be expected to contest a benefit denial
%% E 14 without the administrator's ratlonale for denying the claim [in the
.§ § 151 first instance. Without the medical reviewer's rationale, the
Eg & 161 claimant is left to shoot at a cleaked target and cannot deplloy her
%g 2 17| arquments and evidence in a fashion that will meaningfully agddress
- 18 | the administrator's concerns. The claimant should also be aple to
19 | make arguments directed to the weight that the administrator| ought
20 to give to the reviewing physician's opinion vis-a-vis the opinion
21§ of a treating physician. This requires that the claimant haye
22l access to the medical reviewer's credentials. The claimants|in
23| this case also require access to the utilization review crit%ria
24| discussed above in order to argue that their hospitalization|was
25| medically necessary. Section 1133(2) is therefore an alternate
26 || ground upon which the Board was required to provide the utilEzation
271 review criteria, a position that the Secretary of Labor andoises.
28 9
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See DOL Brief at 9-~12.
Plaintiffs request the court to impose a monetary
sanction upon the plan administrator for its failure to proyide the

requested documents. ERISA provides that:

Any administrator * * * who fails or refuses to cemply
with a request for any information which such
administrator is required by this subchapter to ¢ rnish
to a participant or beneficiary * * * may in the ¢ourt's
discretion be personally liable to such participapt or
peneficiary in the amount of up to $100 a day froj the
date of such failure or refusal, and the court ma in its
discretion order such other relief as it deems pr¢per.

O 00 =3 O v A W N

29 USC § 1132(c)(1). Both of the statutory provisions that

—
o

obligate the Board to disclose the requested documents, secfion

—t
—

1133 (2) and section 1024(b) (4), are part of same subchapter [of

-t
[ ]

ERISA as section 1132(c)(1). Failure to comply with requesiys for

foey
W

information pursuant to those provisions thaerefore subjects |the

Board to the penalties described in section 1132(c)(1). "hie

it
wh

purpose of [section 1132(c) (1)) is not to compensate participants

—
[+,

for injuries, but to punish noncenpliance with ERISA.” Fairpcloth,

United States District Court
For the Narthern District of California
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91 F3d at 658. Although neither prejudice nor injury are

[y
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perquisites to an award of sanctions pursuant to section

Pl
\O

1132(c) (1), these are factors the court may consider is deciding

[ o]
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whether to exercise its discretion to award a penalty. See

[
ot

Moorhart v Bell, 21 F3d 1499, 1506 (10th Cir 1994). The coyrt may

NN
W N

also consider evidence that the plan acted in bad faith. sji id.

Although the court is persuaded that the Board shdquld

[\
H

have disclosed the documents, the court cannot conclude that

N
LA

defendants' position was so unreascnable as to reflect bad qaith.

™
on

There is no authority directly addressing whether the documJnts at
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